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Administrative information
Charitable Status
The University of Essex Students’ Union is an unincorporated charity established under
the Education Act 1994 and
registered with the Charity Commission (No. 1140278) since 8 February 2011, when Students’ Unions
connected with
exempt higher/further education institutions were removed by the Charities Act 1993 and
operates as defined in s.20 of
the Education Act 1994.
Principal Address
Wivenhoe Park
Colchester
Essex
C04 35Q
UNIVERSITY OF ESSEX STUDENTS’ UNION

—

TRUSTEES

Sabbatical Trustees
Resigned at 301h June 2021
Molly Purcell
Alexandru lie
Mark Kiley
Adrian Tejan-JaIloh
Vinnosh Jaya Kumur
Ria Buachie

Appointed at 1st July 2020
Liv Matthews
Appointed at 1st July 2021
Samira-Caterina Monteleone
Callum Broadbent
Hannah Akhalu
Dorothy Akuamoa
Isabella Ciuta
Nashwa Alsakka

Student Trustees
Colchester Student Trustee
Resigned on 30th June 2021
Alexander Kemp
Samira Diebire
Charles Omeke
Sekinah Oladosu
Hannah Akhalu
Southend Student Trustee
Resigned at 30th June 2021
Hannah Akhalu
Loughton Student Trustee

Appointed at 29th July 2021
Verneicia Handfield

Appointed at 1st July 2021
Vacant
Appointed at 1st July 2021
Vacant

External Trustees
Resigned 30th June 2021
No resignations

Appointed at 21st April 2017
Lee Rodwell
Appointed at 12th April 2018
Barry Van- Eupen
Appointed at 26th November 2020
Rebecca Fisher
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UESU employs a Chief Executive to work closely with the Executive Officers and ensure effective
management of the
charity as head of a senior management team as follows:
Chief Executive
Director of Finance
Director of Student Services
Director of Marketing and Strategy

Craig Stephens
Barbara Reynolds
Reeves Watson
Steve Haugh

The Trustee Board present their Annual Report for the year ended 31 July 2021, which includes
the administrative
information set out on page 1 together with the audited accounts for that year.
Auditors
Crowe U.K. LLP
Registered Auditors
Aquis House
49-51 Blagrave Street
Reading
Berks
RG1 1PL

Bankers
Lloyds TSB Bank plc
27 High Street
Coichester
coi 1DU
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WELCOME
Hello and welcome to the University of
Essex Students’ Union’s 2020/21 Trustee
Annual Report.
If you find yourself reading this then you’re
probably either port of the Chorities
Commission, a University Council member,
an SU Trustee Board member, a staff
member of the SU, our auditors or one of
our wonderful siudent memoers we nope
you 9nd the report interesfng.

most important ever, because retail and
the SU stayed open amid the toughest
challenge ever set.”

Here are just some of our achievements:
Don’t read this bit if you don’t want any
spoilers © for the report
•

—

If you’re none of the above then please
drop us on email at su@essex.ac.uk and tell
us what inspired you to read our report (we
love making new friends)!

•

•
As a result of the ongoing Pandemic
2020/21 saw o continuation of the 19/20
academic year with students studying botn
on campus and learning from home. All
Lectures and seminars were held online
with an exception in the 3rd term for those
courses identified by government as being
able to return back to face to ace
teaching.
Enoncially we had budgeted for a
significant loss, but the ongoing support
from the University and the Governments
furlough scheme helped to cut the
forecasted deficit.
Th:s report highlights all of the work tat we
have carried out in this aifficult year to help
acheve or vsicn of b&ng ‘the world’s most
student centred organisalion’

•
•

•

•

Ranked in the top 15 of SU’s for our
Academc Representation in the
National Studen’ Survey (NSS).
We launched the UmU app, with
over 7,700 connections made and
32,000 messages sent by the end of
the trial period in May.
325 Christmas meals given out to
students isolating on our campuses
477 care packages delivered to
students isolating on our campuses
1069 volunteering hours delivered in
Student volunteering week, ranking
us No 1 again. 24,767 hours across
the year.
The ‘Seriously, How Are You?”.
engaged with over 1,700 students
ana supportea over 270 who were
struggling, including through Zoom
conversations, Wellness Walks and
referring on to specialised support.
SU Homes saved students
£54,698.26 in rent by working with
landloras

sji7’c c
Craig Stephens

I believe, this statement by our Retail
Manager Mike Bamford sums up the year
we have had...

CEO

Samira-Caterino
Monteleone
President 2021/22

“This year, unlike any other, hasn’t been
about increasing sales, upping profits or
achieving major milestones, it’s simply
been about being here, staying open and
providing when many needed us. For this, I
believe it to be a special year, maybe the
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STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND
MANAGEMENT
The University of Essex Students Union
(UESU) is constituted under the
Education Act 1994 as a charity (see
page 1) with internal regulations or
Rules approved by the governing body
of University of Essex (the University).
UESU’s charitable Objects under the
Act, to advance the University’s
educational purposes by providing
representation and support for the
students
at the
University,
are
supplemented by the further Object of
helping members to develop their own
charitable
activities
as
active
participants in civil society.
UESU is administered by its Trustees of 13
students who are either appointed or
elected annually by cross-campus
secret ballot of the UESU membership
and 3 External Trustees appointed
through a recruitment process, The 7
posts of President, VP Education, VP
Services and Communications, VP
Student Activities, VP Welfare and
Community, VP Southend and VP
International
are
full-time,
or
‘sabbatical’, posts remunerated as
authorised by the Education Acts and
cannot exceed two years duration for
each holder. The 7 full-time Sabbaticals
6 Student Trustees and 3 External
Trustees are regarded as the charity
trustees of UESU for the purposes of the
Charities Acts.
UESU
operates
on
democratic
principles, with a sabbatical team of
the President and 6 Vice Presidents.
These officers are held accountable for
their work through a number of
democratic processes, these include:
Parliament, all student meetings,
specific liberation and sectional
meetings and the ACM. General Union

Policy is set via an online suggestion
and discussion and voting process
supplemented
with
all
student
meetings were required.
The
Trustees,
assisted
by
sub
committees where appropriate, have
delegated the day-to-day running of
UESU to a Chief Executive, named
above.
As the charity Trustees, all Trustees
receive an induction into their legal
and administrative responsibilities, with
an ongoing training programme as
and when needed for issues arising
during their term of office.
The following trustee board sub
committees are currently supporting
the scrutiny work of the board;

Human Resources Committee
The Trustee Board has established a
Human Resources Committee to
scrutinise the Union’s HR policies &
procedures. The Committee will review
methods to ensure effective running of
the Trustee Board by supporting the
recruitment of External Trustees. The
Committee
has
the
delegated
responsibility for the recruitment,
remuneration and objectives of the
Chief Executive and for the ratification
of new or material changes to HR
Policies. The Committee will monitor
and advise on the performance of the
Union’s HR Strategy.
Audit and Risk Committee
The Trustee Board has established an
Audit & Risk Committee to provide an
independent
opinion
on
the
effectiveness and adequacy of the
Union’s systems of risk management
and internal controls to ensure
maintenance of a sound system to
safeguard stakeholders’ interests and
the organisation’s assets and alerting
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the Board of Trustees to any emerging
risk issues.
Union Performance Committee
In line with good governance practice
the Trustee Board nas established a
Performance Committee to support
them in their performance monitoring
responsibilities. The Committee will
monitor and advise on operational
performance, including trading and
non-trading activities and review the
outcomes of operating plans.
TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Trustees are responsible for
preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report
and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Stondaras).
The law applicable to charities in
England and Wales requires the
Trustees
to
prepare
financial
statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the
slate of affairs of the charity and the
group and of the incoming resources
and application of resources of the
group for that period.
In preparing these financial statements,
the Trustees are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;
• observe the methods ana principles
in the Charities SQRP;
• make judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent;
• state
whether
applicable
accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements;
• prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
charity will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible far keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
charity’s transactions, disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charity and
enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the
Charities Act 2011, the Charities
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 and the provisions of the charity’s
constitution.
They
are
also
responsible
for
safeguarding the assets of the charity
and the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
KEY MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION
The key management of the Union are
the Sabbatical officers and Directors,
as
named
above.
They
are
remunerated as per the pay structure
agreed by the Board with the policy
objective of ensuring that they are
provided with appropriate incentives
to encourage enhanced performance
and are, in a lair and responsible
manner, rewaroed for their individual
contributions to the Union’s success.
The appropriateness and relevance of
such
remuneration
is
reviewed
annually, incluaing reference to
comparisons with other organisations to
ensure that the Union remains sensitive
to the broader issues of pay ond
employment conditions elsewhere.
With rhe exception of the Chief
Executive and the Sabbaticals, the pay
and remuneration of the Directors is the

decision of the Chief Executive, within
the budget parameters agreed by the
Trustee
Board.
The
pay
and
remuneration of the Chief Executive is
agreed by the Human Resources
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Committee as delegated by the
Trustee Board. The pay and Conditions
of the Sabbatical officers is the decision
of
the
Officers
Remuneration
Committee.
The full Trustee Board meets every 6
weeks to receive reports from individual
Officers, sub-committees, the Chief
Executive and the Director of Finance
to review ihe charity’s performance,
finances, administration generally, and
to decide policy issues arising. University
of Essex Students’ Union (UESU) also
employs a number of non-student fulltime staff for the sake of continuity in
the management of its many activities.
Those staff are accountable to the
Chief Executive for the performance of
their duties.

established and is updated at least
annually. Where appropriate, systems
or procedures have been established
to mitigate the risks the charity
faces. Budgetary and internal control
risks
are
minimised
by
the
implementation of procedures for
authorisation of all transactions and
projects. Procedures are in place to
ensure compliance with health and
safety of staff,
volunteers and
participants on all activities organised
by the Union. These procedures are
periodically reviewed to ensure that
they continue to meet the needs of the
charity.

There is no reason to believe that this or
equivalent support from the University
will not continue for the foreseeable
future, as the Education Act 1994
imposes a duty on the University to
ensure the financial viability of its
student representative body.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board, with particular assistance
from the Audit and Risk Committee,
regularly review a risk register on a
rolling basis (as per the risk register
policy) to make sure that they remain
relevant. The principal risks and
uncertainties currently facing the Union
are considered to be as follows:
• The possible reduction in funding by
the University caused by
o Their own financial health
o Their perception of the value
of the role of the Union
• The financial health of the University
is dependent on HEFCE funding,
which in turn is susceptible to factors
beyond the control of the Union,
including
o Government decisions in
relation to immigration
o Brexit
o Popularity
driven
by
affordability and fee levels
• Reputational damage in the
unlikely event of a high-profile
activity by a Trustee.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Trustees have examined the major
strategic, business and operational risks
faced by University of Essex Students’
Union. A risk register has been

Our plans and strategies for managing
risk include maintaining effective
internal controls, risks register, incident
reporting and monitoring systems and
insurance cover wherever appropriate.

RELATIONSHIP WITH UNIVERSITY OP
ESSEX
The relationship between the University
and UESU is established in the
Regulations of the University and
detailed in UESU Rules approved by
both organisations. UESU receives a
Block Grant from the University, and
part-occupies a building owned by the
University and is charged rent for this
use. Although ULSU continues to
generate supplementary funding from
various mutual trading activities, it will
always
be dependent on the
University’s support.
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AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

The Trustees have agreed the following
vision for the Students’ Union:
‘WE WANT TO BE THE WORLD’S MOST
STUDENT-CENTRED ORGANISATION”

Within this vision the SU has the following
long-term aims:
1.

PrOmoting the interests and
welfare of Students at University
of Essex during their course of
study and representing,
supporting and advising
Students

2.

Being the recognised
representative cnannel
between Students
and University of Essex and any
other external bodies; and

3.

Providing social, cultural,
sporting and recreational
activities and forums for
discussions and debate for the
personal development of its
Students.

In pursuit of these aims for the public
benefit, UESU will ensure the diversity of
its membership is recognised, valued
and supported and has established
departments and services far use by its
members and to support its work with
the University and other organisations
on behalf of students. These include the
SU Advice, the SU Homes (Lettings
Office), the SU Activities, the SU Bar, Top
Bar. Catering (MOA restaurant, and
The Kitchen) Sub Zero (nightclub), the
SU Lounge (Southend), the SU Café
and Corbett Theatre Bar (Loughton),
Cine 10 (cinema), and the SU Shops
(The Store, The Extra Store, The Mini
Store and The Post Office).

Executive Officers of UESU sit on almost
every committee of the University ana
meet regularly with the Local Authority
ana other providers of public services
affecting students.
UESU continues to represent the
students of this University on relevant
local, national and international issues
by maintaining a high proportion of
student
representatives.
Student
representatives now sit on and
contribute to over 50 University
committees
and
academic
programme forums which allow the
Union to cater effectively to the needs
of the students.
Student representatives are present on
all policy and strategy making boards.
To further enhance the student
experience, UESU attract students from
all walks of life to get involved in the
Union, the University and the local
community by actively promoting the
benefits of volunteering in student-led
activities.
As
result,
a
in 20/2 1
1016 students volunteered to work on
projects within the local community or
within the University or Union.
When reviewing our objectives and
planning our activities, we have given
due consideration to the Charity
Commission’s general and relevant
supplementary guidance on public
benefit.
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE
TOP 15 FOR ACADEMIC
REPRESENTATION
As a Students’ Union our core focus
remains on how we can support our
16,000 members in succeeding at
University, especially in how we can
represent their academic interests at a
time of incredible change and
uncertainty.
Our success in representing our
members in their education is
measured in the National Student
Survey
(NSS),
specifically
our
performance in quesfion 26 of the
survey.
This question asks students
directly whether they believe that, in
their experience, ‘The Students’ Union
effectively
represents
students’
academic interests”.
This year was the fifth year that
Students’ Unions have been specifically
measured against this question and our
target is to be 9% above the base-line
for all Students Unions and to be in the
top 10 of all English mainstream
Universities.
Despite the significant impact of the
pandemic this year we achieved 8%
above the base line with an overall
agreement score of 64%.
Importantly, this score ranked us
15th when measured against all English
mainstream Universities.

student
representatives,
elected
officers
and
staff
in
listening,
understanding and representing our
members needs and making sure that
we work collaboratively with staff at all
levels of the University to ensure that
those needs are acted upon.

OUR MISSION FOR 2020/21
This move to a more agile approach in
2019/20 has proved especially relevant
and prescient with the continuation of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the
academic year
Rather than a traditional top-down’
approach, our mission was created
entirely in collaboration with our staff
and officer team, leading to greater
levels of ownership and engagement.
Unlike previous years, this year’s mission
was informed by the information
coming to us as a result of the
pandemic.
Our resulting mission for 2020/21 was as

follows:
1. Listen and truly Understand our
members
2. Be Agile and Responsive
3. Put student groups at the heart
of our decision making
See the Performance highlights below

This position reflects an incredible
amount of hard work on behalf of our
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AND
IMPACT
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STUDENT ACTIVITIES & SUPPORT DIVISION
STUDENT ENGAGEMENT
We, as a team farmed in the middle of
a global pandemic, spent this year
being agile, responding to the needs of

our members and creating amazing
experiences for our members. We had
a total of 6844 recorded encounters
over the year with 1902 known
individuals
and
1203
unknown
individuals.

1,700 students and support over 270
who were struggling, including through
Zoom conversations, Wellness Walks
and referring on to specialised support.

December and January

October
An unconventional welcome, in the
strangest of times! A mixture of online
and physical events, including Crazy
Golf (259pps) pumpkin carving (95pps)
and SU quizzes (SO8pps) As a
department, in October had 1678
individual engagements.

£LAalAk
We provided a physical and online
winter creak programme including
care packages, a free Christmas meal
and a menu of brilliant online events.
We handed out 300 meals and 454
care packages and had a total of 119
attendees to online events.
February and March
We brought srudenTs together online
with our thought-provoking “Voices of
Now” speaker series (76 attendees).

November
We asked our members, ‘Seriously,
How Are You?”. We engaged with over

We celebrated Lunar New Year with
our members. 233 packs were
collected, with events throughout the
week.
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14 new SU Angels were recruited and
trained to support projects going
forward.
Over 160 pizza ingredients boxes given
away; over 50 people shared final pizza
online.
Over 200 people engaged in our online
Let’s Connect” mixers and events.
We launched the UmU app, with over
7,700 connections made and 32,000
messages sent by the end of the trial
period in May.
April

Our full Spring Break programme was
designed, planned, and delivered by
SU Angels. including t-shirt painting,
seed planting, Easter Egg hunt and
Easter cake ingredients giveaway,
which engaged over 250 members.
Colchester SU Angels continue to
deliver Teas and Coffees to students
studying on campus.
Students from the Islamic community
have been struggling during Ramadan
due to Isolation. Especially, with the
fact That they have hod to oreak their
fast on their own. At the end of April,
the team and a number of Sabbatical
Officers and other teams and deputy
aireciors worked hard to allow If tar to
occur in a safe way for these students.
We had 105 cttenaees.

Just Play

As soon as it was safe to do so, Just Play
restarted, to great results. A different
event was held each week throughout
May to support the Exams Campaign.
In total the Just Play events engaged
with 391 Students partaking in smoothie
bikes, bungee trampolining. axe
throwing
and
therapy
dog
orienteering.
‘Thank you so much... I hope you organise
more of these outdoor events that support
the mental health of us students.”
“Hi, I attended the axe throwing even
(event) today. Just wanted to say thank
you so much!!! I thoroughly enjoyed it and
found it so therapeutic
whoever
thought of this needs a raise!”

s...

Just Play: Loughton Yoga

Desoite all restrictions, we were able to
deliver a popular Just Ploy online
offering
Loughton
to
students
throughout the whole year with
consistent attendees throughout.

May
June
Cultural Project:
#Qneworldessex

Photo Competition.

One World Essex photo competiHon
resulted in over 600 likes on one
Instagram post. One of the most liked’
Essex SU Insta posts of the yeah

Covid 19 Testing

—

Picnic Experience.

Workng in collaboration with the
university, our Angels held a picnic
experience day to support incentivising
students having lateral flow tests on
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campus. This was held across all three
campuses and 400 picnic experience
packages were handed out.
Two at our SU Angels created a video
to raise awareness about the tests on
campus and to illustrate how easy and
non-scary’ they are.
Teas and Coffees

Angels
Angels have continued to give out
teas, coffees, juices, and biscuits to our
members who were studying for exams
and coursework. Our angels took real
ownership of this role through listening
to our members ard react:ng through
bringing in new drinks and biscuits. We
continue to operate on the mentality
that the teas and coffees are tools to
engage with our members and to be
—

genuinely interesied in their lives.
We’ve not just handed out hundreds of
drinks; we’ve asked hundreds of
students how they are.
To conclude...

We are unique as a team as we were
formed in the middle of the pandemic
and had to hit the ground running. We
are extremely proud of the number of
students we have supported through
the most chaHenging of times, and look
forward to another year of great
events, campaigns, and support for our
members.
Jeni Day & Johnnie Marrioff

DEMOCRACY & REPRESENTATION
Parliament

This year a new structure of Parliament
was formed, where all parliament
representatives (from all campuses)
met, discussed, and voted on matters
that impacted all students first and then
the campus sections would follow
afterwards to discuss specific campus
matters. This avoided previous issues
that we have had where Colchester
parliament made decisions that also
impacted the other two campuses.
Three new roles were created to
support this new structure, these are
parliament chairs.
This new structure has brought the
whole community together and we
hope will contnue to build into a strong
parliament.

Referenda
The Democracy and Representation
Department operationally supported
the Referendum, which asked the
question:
should tuition fees be
reduced to reflect the university
experience?”. 4247 students took part
in the Referenoum.
Elections
This academic year, 4 elections were
held October By Election, Leadership
Race, Summer Elections and Loughton
Elections. Please see below for more
details.
Leadership Race

This year we held the first ever online
Leadership Race where no physical
campaigning took place. We had a
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total of 33 candidates compared to
last year where we had 25.
The debates were done differently too.
Last year we only held Presidential
debates but based on feedback we
went back to all Sabb positions being
allowed to have the opportunity to
present themselves. Doing this via Zoom
and working with Rebel to repackage it
afterwards worked well and we have
nad positive feedback about this.
As this was our first election online it was
definitely a learning curve where we
have identified that the rules need
amending to ensure they suit an online
and physical election.
Our voting turn out (12619) was lower
than previous years (14361 in 2020),
however faking into account that this
was an online only election, and we
know that a high majority of our votes
used to come through physical
marquee, so we believe this was still a
good turnout.
Even fhough we could not hold a
physical results night, we still held a

successful and professional results night
which was streamed online via
youtube. On the night there was over
480 unique viewers.
Loughfon Elections

Parliament passed two positions that
Loughton students requested to
represent communities. These were:
Students with Disabilities Officer and
LGBQT+ Officer. Therefore, a specific
Loughton Election was held, and three
positions were successfully filled
the
two above officer positions and
Loughton Chair.
—

Overall, it has been a challenging year
where we have to work in different
ways to ensure thot students are still
involved with democracy. We are
proud with how democracy has
continued and with our bounce back
plan for next year we are excited to see
students awareness of democracy
grow and the engagement with
democracy increase.
Jeni Day

STUDENT ACTIVITIES REPORT 2020-2021

Despite a very challenging academic
year like no other, we are pleased to
report thot our collective student
activities have worked hard to ensure
that we maximised the student
experience where possible. Even
though most of our in-person activities
were stopped due to the ponaemic,
we were still able to find creative ways
to engage with our membership across
the world through the use of new
mediums such as zoom, teams, social
media and incorporated new activities
to our offering along the way. However,
VTeam was able to have at least 2

weekly in-person activities throughout
the pandemic. Over 100 events per
month
were
uploaded
onto
EssexStudent.com during the peak of
the year and so much of this success
was due to the staff and students non
stop commitment to provide a positive
experience to their members during the
worst of times.
Although the overall membership
numbers, particularly in sports clubs
and societies, have seen a sharp drop,
due to the pandemic and severely
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restricted
opportunities
for
participating, we are proud of the
work achieved during the 2020/21
academic year.
•

We were proud to be one of very few
UK Universities to hold an in-person
freshers
fair
under Covid
safe
conditions welcoming almost 2000
people to the event across two
days.
This
was
an
amazing
achievement by the activities team
and wider SU staff to pull off.

•

Awards. This was in particular an
amazing
achievement
for
Women in STEM due to them
only just starting
Enactus reached the Semi-Finals
in their National Competition
Malic Thomas and Emmanuel
Osei-Asomah represented Essex
at the England Universities
Football Squad

Raise & Give (RAG)
Club and Society Stats

•
•
•
•

Sports Club Members (2020/21)
1982 (4020 for 2019/20)
Society Members (2020/21) 2311
(3396 for 2019/20)
No. Sports clubs 43
No. Societies 137

Despite the challenges we did see 16
new societies start up over the course
of the year: Art History; Blockchain &
Cryptocurrency;
Brazilian;
Hidden
Disabilities; Irish; Left; Marxist; Nursing;
Safe Space; Self Improvement; Social
Work & Socidl Justice; Society of
Solicitors; Space Exploration; Women in
Business; Women in Law; and Women in
STEM.
National Recognition

•

•

•

Refugee Teaching
Program
(RTP)
won
the
National
Volunteering and Society Award
(NVSA5)
YTeam recognised as UK No.1
Volunteering department during
SVW
The Writing society and the
Women in STEM society were
shortlisted at the National
Society and Volunteering

Clubs and Societies have been busy
raising funds for various local and
national charities, having raised over
£12,000 throughout the year. This
included the BRIT Challenge where
multiple club and society teams joined
the challenge to walk, run and cycle
over 2021 miles across a 6 week period.
In total 326 students, staff and alumni
participated across 27 teams travelling
a total of 23,913 miles.
BUCS Participation
•

•

Entered Men’s and Women’s
Outdoor Cricket teams into BUCS for
summer
term.
Successfully
completed the season providing
playing
opportunities
for our
students.
The Athletics Club participated in
the London University and Colleges
Association (LUCA) Championships
with multiple medal winners across
the various Athletic events
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•

•

•

•

Participated in BUCS Lacrosse 6s
Championships with 1 Men’s and 1
Women’s team competing against
the best teams in the UK

•
•

Volunteering
•
Total number of weekly sessions
delivered: 276 (27 of which were in
person and 249 online)
• Total number of volunteering hours
logged: 24767.75
• Total number of active unique
volunteers: 1016
• Total number of hours logged
during SVW: 1069
Student Volunteering Week (SVW)
Stats:
• Total number of volunteers during
SVW: 547 (record n VTeam’s history)
• Total number of projects delivered
during SVW: 50
• Total number of One-Offs project 52
(21 of which in person and 31
online)
• Total number of attendees during
Wellness day: 100+
• Total number of positive messages
exchanged during SVW valentine’s
day project: 57
Key volunteering events! projects!
achievements:
•

•

•

•

Created Volunteering Base in
Southend; first time we have VTeam
in Southend as a department
Chalk your Talk (pasitivity messages
chalked in square 5 that attracted
a lot of attention and was
welcomed by open day visitors)
Many positive comments about
Time Travelers sessions in Woodland
View
Exam Relief sessions with art club
Care for Calais where over £500
donations as well as over 100
different amazon items have been
purchased by people; run by RTP
(Refugee Teaching Project) regular
project
Wellness day in May in Colchester
and Southend
Sorting food dekvery packages for
disadvantaged families in February
(one of the in-person events during
the lockdown)
Students volunteering from home
opportunities included making face
coverings, coasters, cards etc. that
were sent to people in need. Care
home residents, for instance,
received hand made cards and
gifts containing positive messages
from our students.

Essex ranked number 1 in UK for
volunteering hours; number of
volunteers and projects delivered
during Student Volunteering Week
(based on SVN annual survey)
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Rebel Stats
Despite many challenges due to
access to equipment and the studios,
Rebel has adapted and had a very
successful year. With a strong core
committee and support from the VP
Experience,
VP
Communities
&
Engagement, and the SA Team, they
have supported their members virtually
throughout the year.
•
•
•
•
•

.

185 Rebel Members
40 Articles published
20 videos published + training
videos created
Hosted 8 Leadership Race debates
and packaged the content
Rebel resources launched to
support
members
to
create
remotely
Covid secure 50 Hour Rebellion held
from the Studios with members from
all around the world over Twitch,
Over £1000 was raised for their 3

•

•

charities:
Mind:
Colchester
Foodbank and Black Minds Matter.
Supported
the
“Movember”
campaign working closely with
Essex Blades Sports Clubs
Rebel also collaborated with the
TEDx society to create a broadcast
that was hosted on the official TEDx
platforms
oroadcasting
Essex
Students across the world.

CINE1O

Due to the panoemic, CinelO
unfortunately was unable to open this
year. We had planned to open it during
the Winter Break but due to changes in
the government restrictions we were
unable to facilitate the screenings.
We have been reviewing same of the
positive things from when CinelO was
open in 2019/20 and look to introduce
an even better experience for our
members in 2021.

Dom King & Rae Waddon

SU ADVICE YEAR END REPORT
2020/21 has been a tricky year for SU
Advice., .as with most SU departments
we hove had to contend with reduced
staffing levels, working from home and
the
switch
to
online
service
provision. Despite these difficulties, we
have been able to continue to offer
support and representation to a large
number of students. As the stars shaw
below, despite having a much smaller
staff team (at some periods there were
only 2 members of staff working due to
furlough and on average we were
approximately running on a reduction
of 100 staff hours a week through loss of
student staff/frontrunners and one of
our Senior Caseworkers resigning in July
2020).

All of our appointments have been
offered via Zoom, or telephone. We
also offered a Zoom drop-in hour every
Tuesday and Thursday. We opened
the SU Advice Reception area for
physical drop-ins Oct Dec and again
May
July. These physical drop-ins
have generally been for short questions
or to book an appointment on
Zoom. This is the first yea! we’ have
tracked emails received, but with the
pandemic and working from home we
believe the number of cases rhat have
been deal: with via email is likely to
have increased See table 1.
—

—

—

The most popular enquiry types this
year have changed fairly significantly
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from previous years due to the impact
of Covid 19 and the associated
issues. Our student immigration cases
have reduced this year as many
students were studying from overseas
and so did not need to get a visa. We
have also seen an increase in both
Student Conduct Representation and
Academic Offences Representallon
cases this is n line with an increase in
the number of both types of cases
being dealt with by the University.

*Appointment type may be recorded as more than
one type of enquiry hence the difference between
this figure and the total number of oppointmen’s held.

Table 2

-

Breakdown of appointment

types
Enquiry type

No.
Of
Appointments
held

Student Conduct

506

Academic Offences

482

—

Table 2 shows the breakdown of the
appointment enquiry types. We have
seen a large number of Academic
Appeals, Extenuating Circumstances
and Late Submission enquiries through
our email correspondence as well as a
large number of emails relating to
Housing and Financial issues during
lockdown (this was mostly from students
in privately rented accommodation
who were not able to live in their
accommodation but were still legally
obliged to pay rent).

Immigration/Visa query 89

table 1
Student Interactions (where
tracked 201 9/20 figures are in
brackets)
—

Zoom
Drop-

Physica
I Drop-

Emails
Receive

ins

ins

ci

1144

125

203

10962

(1222)

(N/A)

(N/A)

(N/A)

Appts.
Held

Other Academic Issues

72

UniversitylOlA
Complaints
Appeals/Exam Board
Options
Welfare/Wellbeing

34
34

Housing

23

Fitness to Practice

15

Finance

10

PhD Progress ssues

3

31

Employment
Consumer

1

TOTAL

1301*

Sian Lovesy

SOUTHEND YEAR END REPORT
Online Freshers fair
As a team we led on the online Freshers
fair creating a fair for Southend and
Loughton and supporting Colchester.

•

•

Southend Freshers fair page (ran
Oct 20) received 18.883 views from
2,435 users.
Welcome Fair page (ran Jan 21)
received 3,653 views from 192 users.
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SU Angels
• Average of 10 students per session
We
successfully
recruited
and
supported 5 SU Sauthend Angels to
Free Christmas Dinners and care
support
Southend
packages
students
with
activities and support. They have been
Supporting students unable to go home
amazing and even supported the
and staying on campus.
Education and Engagement team.
• Christmas dinner 25 students
• Care package 32 students
-

-

Welcome week
we ran many online events in Welcome
week to help students meet each other
and
worked
closely
with
the
Engagement team to share their online
activities. We also found Toucan a new
online platform for events and shared
with the whole SU teams.
Clubs & Socs
Working with the Activities team we
promoted the opportunity for Southend
students to join online Colchester
club/socs online activities. This is the first
time we hove managed to do this and
will be continuing into the next
academic year.
.
40
Southend
online
society
members
4 Southend online club members

Just Play
When government guidance allowed,
we ran weekly in person Yoga and Hill
sessions for our students.
• An average of 5 regular students
attended Yoga every week and 7
regular students attended HIlT every
week.
• We also promoted many online Just
Play activities.
Free Food packages
Working closely with a local youth
charity (Get the kids out) to provide
free food and grocery packages to
students during lockdown. We ran 5
sessions, one a month.

Free hot drinks
We offered from the SU Lounge as a
takeawciy service throughout the year
supporting students on campus.

•

Ii

‘N

30+ students came along to each
event to collect food parcels.

Student Exchanges (Book and clothing)
The SU Angels arranged a clothing and
book exchange for students. Both
received positive feedback with the
possibility of continuing these events
next academic year.
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12 students took part in the book
•
In person litter picks including one
exchange and we received a
collaborating
with
another
donation of over 20 books.
University
Over the course of 3 week 12
students took part in the clothing
swap shop.
35 students took part in our Plant
wellbeing giveaway.

Online Open Mics
The Southend SU Angels arranged two
online open mic nights via zoom this
year.
• 30+students
for
each
event
including students from other
campuses,
the
highest
engagement we received for
online events.

•

Knitting in the park making coasters
for local refugee families

n
Social media engagement
We also improved our social media
engagement this year.
The SU Angels created a Southend
connect Instagram account where
they shared weekly tips and best
places to visit in the local area to help
with the community feel on campus.
Our main social media pages have also
seen a steady improvement in figures,
we reach over 600 followers on
Instagram and climbing, also receiving
increasing weekly engagement, and
over 2,400 followers on Facebook.
We also created a life at Southend
Facebook group which aimed to
support students and share what we
were doing throughout the term to
support them, we have over 100
members on the page.

Volunteering
We now have Vleam in Southendl
Lead by student staff with our support
we were able to host:

•

•

Many online activities including
making care cards for local care
homes.
We also have our first Wellbeing
Ambassador project lead.

SU Big weekend
As a small team we arranged a mini
festival style end of year event for
students.
Friday 16th July, we arranged a non
alcoholic “mocktail” bar in the SU
Lounge. We had 11 attendees.
Saturday 17th July, we hosted a Picnic in
the local Priory Park where students
were able to get a free picnic blanket
and picnic food. We also have
activities for students to try including
juggling. We had 24 attendees.
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Sunday 181h July, we worked with local
water sports group SUP to host a
paddle boarding lesson. We had 23
attendees.

Mini Golf at Caddies
To follow the SU Big weekend, we
hosted a mini golf night at local
Caddie’s as part of Just play. This was
our last in person event ot the
academic year and we received
positive feedback for all the events we
were able to host as students were
leaving campus for the summer or
graduating. 8 students took part in mini
golf.
Kirsty Matthew

EDUCATION
It has been an incredibly exciting,
challenging and hugely rewarding
year for the Education Team. Despite
the challenges of Covid we are
incredibly proud of the service we have
provided to our members across aN
three campuses, and we look forward
to 2021/22 with a brand new team of
coordinators.

NSS
Despite a significant drop in overall
satisfaction levels of students with their
University experience, we maintained
our position as a top 15 SU. The question
related to the SU is as follows:

—

YEAR END REPORT
with University hierarchy where we
share live feedback of what our
members and specifically student reps
ore telling us on a weekly basis. We
have
also
established
monthly
meetings with the Deputy Dean and
faculty manager for each of the 3
schools. As a result of this we now have
a permanent position on the Directors
of Education Networking Group.

Student Reps

The students’ union (association or
guild) effectively represents students’
academic interests
This saw us achieve a score of 60.4%.
This was only one of Iwo questions that
was above the sector average. We
continued to lobby the University snce
the start of the year to give us a more
central role in student voice. This has
led to an established weekly meeting

Despite not being able to meet with our
reps lace to face, we had our most
successful year ever in terms of student
rep engagement. In total we trained
354 student reps for the academic year
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across 42 training sessions. We also
appointed 20 lead reps for each
department. These reps were involved
in weekly catch ups with the team, and
we spent a total of 96 hours hosting on
line catch ups with our reps. We also
were able to promote two of our most
engaged reps to the position of Faculty
Convenor.
Exams Campaign

For the second year running, students
have
faced
the
challenge
of
completing all assessments on-line. This
enabled us to run a hugely successful
and unique exams campaign. This
included a weekly communications
email with a high open rate of almost
4000 students reading the emoils, We
also created a live Facebook page in
which 660 students joined.
In addition to this, our Exams Campaign
mascot Djungleskog” proved to be a
huge hit with studentsl

to those that remained on campus. We
also provided daily live support through
our live feedback page which enabled
us to solve exam related problems for
our members.
Pulse Surveys

The Education Team has launched a
range of pulse surveys throughout the
year to gauge how students are feeling
about their studies. The four main
surveys
we
have
run
are:
First Impressions of Teaching (1700)
Second Impressions of Teaching (1457)
How are you feeling about term 2
(1270)
How have you found on-line exams
(1047)
‘I
‘.
•

a

Q’.

V

‘:.

/

/

7

Student Voice Groups

Just play supported the campaign by
running a host of face-to-face events
for students on campus and the exams
angels did a brilliant job serving coffee

97 student voice groups (this is a
recordlll) have taken place this year
with 271 students attending the various
meetings (another recordl). This is an
increase from 206 last year.
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In total 5474 students have engaged in
the Education Team pulse surveys
throughout the year. Reports for all of
these have been shared with the PVC
Education and relevant academic
staff.
Chris Jakens
MARKETING CAMPAIGNS & ENGAGEMENT
How Are You Campaign

In November we implemented the How
Are You Campaign. Phase 1 asked
members How Are You’ and directed
to a webpage so they could tell us how
they are. Phase 2 shared feedback
from phase 1 and highlight support
available; here are the highlights:
How Are You Phase 1
Instagram video interactions: 131
webpage views: 52 views
fl SUPPORT AND ADVICU

No one is an Island campaign

More than 2,000 students shared with us
how they were honestly feeling
We launched a website landing page
on 26 March the key achievements
being;
• The wall video achieved a reach of
3,900 and 370 interactions on
Instagram
• Views of our wall webpage: 650
• Views of our online community
webpage: 72
• Views of our support webpage 41
NO ONE IS AN ISLAND

:1:’

.4

j

it

IJnsIJ
OUR WALL

FM TTLIMG OVERAVISMID

How Are You Phase 2

Instagram video interactions: 244 (#3
IGTV video for interactions from the last
12 months!)
webpage views: 434 views (734% uplift
vs phase 11)
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We built a community of 660
members, who joined our Essex SU
Exams Mode Community Facebook
group
Here we engaged with members to
support them through exams and

provided a platform where they could
speak to each other.
We sent weekly emails to all students,
recordirg a consistent email open rate
for weekly Exams emails (overage 31%).

Lyndsey Pollard

SERVICES DIVISION
Retail 2020/2021 key highlights
In a tough year dominated by the
pandemic the major achievement for
our retail department was being able
to stay open and provide for our
members
and staff every day
throughout
the
year
(Christmas
excepted). We operated a strict 2
bubble system ensuring that if anyone
did go down with the virus, we still had
a full team to keep the business open
and this worked throughout, meaning
that at times of isolating staff our shop
was never in danger of having to close.
Many of my team worked large parts of
the year, some of us were ever present,
on campus, in the thick of things. We
worked through hard times, when
many of us were scared and worried.
We served many members who cared
about us and followed all the rules, but
we served some who didn’t, which was
frying and difficult.
I cannot express just how proud I am of
my team, and the support staff that
worked alongside us from premises and
H&S and IT. I know at times they
struggled, but they turned up and did a
fabulous job. I personally cannot thank
them enough.

During this year we struggled with lack
of sales, sometimes as little as 10% of
usual business meaning stock went out
of date, but we tried everything to
avoid wastage. We used the charity
App ‘too good to go”, where £10 of
stock is sold in a bag from the App for
£3, selling hundreds of said bags. We
sold stock to high street shops to save
destroying it, and we gave stock away
free if we could not sell it any other way.
This resulted in us having less stock
destroyed than in a normal year and
taught us that this is something we
should do permanently from now on.
We also struggled with the national
shortage in the retail chain. Brexit
meant that HGV drivers, many of whom
were international, went back to their
birth countries leaving the industry
100,000 drivers short, added to this’
warehouse staff, pickers etc. were
either going down with the virus or
being pinged meaning the industry lost
60% of its workforce, forcing suppliers to
either cut deliveries or stop them
altogether, a situation that still exists
now. But we used our initiative, we
ordered from 4 shops to stock 1, we
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used suppliers from all over and if
needed,
we
drove
to
other
supermarkets and bought stock to
bring back, to keep essential stock on
our shelves for our members
This year, unlike any other, hasn’t been
about increasing sales, upping profits or
achieving major mHestones, it has

simply been about being here, staying
open and providing when many
needed us. For this, I believe it to be a
special year, maybe the most
important ever, because retail and the
SU stayed open amid the toughest
challenge ever set.
Mike Bamford

Licensed Trade and Catering
This year has been the toughest of
We adopted ROUND as our app
years with the effect of lockdowns and
service provider allowing members to
covid having significant impoct on
order from their tables and for a short
licensed trade and catering outlets,
period of time also ran a Takeaway
food service.
Despite this the teams have rose to the
challenge and pivoted where possible.
Our key highlight however was during
the Football World cup. The SU bar
The Sub Zero Night Club became the
hosted around 120 members for the
Nightingale Arms, which meant we
majority of matches and we saw high
were able to offer an extra 100 spaces
levels of engagement which translated
for students to enjoy events during
into high sales, higher than normal term
Freshers and term 1.
time.
The SU Bar adapted many times and
added an additional space in the SU
Beer
Garden
Marquee
which
increased the limited capacity and
also meant that when outdoor only
service was enforced that we could
continue providing a service to those
students on campus.
We ran several quizzes over the year, a
UV sit down rave and other small scale
events.

MOA restaurant didn’t run this year due
to restrictions but is freshening up ready
for a strong return.
Starbucks also closed its doors due to
reduced footfall, but plans are in place
to relaunch next year as an alcohol
free
venue
with
evening
entertainment.
Pete Brizio

SU Homes 2020/2 1
After a difficult year the team did
amazing in letting all properties for this
academic year before the pandemic
hit. As many students were signed into
contracts many arrived and even
though they were learning online were
in our houses and paying rent.

The following figures show the savings
we made for students through the year
as there were some that asked for rent
reductions:
•
Total Rent reductions £54,698.26
.

Total Fees lost £4,641.70
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Total no. Tenants 78
permanent staff are now all fully
qualified and members of ARLA. Jade
We have a new websire about to be
Murray is yet to start the qualification
launched propelling SUHomes up into
process, but I have this planned for the
the professional world of letting
next academic year, as well as any
alongside this professional photos and
other new staff that we take on.
virtual tours will also now take place
Through
lockdown
we
hove
saving lime and money but olso using
maintained good relationships with our
our students mat are living in the
landlords, and some have converted
property to carry out the viewings for
from tenant find over to being fully
us, using them as our ambassadors.
managed by us. They are all aspiring to
receive
the quality mark and all HMQ
We hove moved to virtual signing of
properties are registered wth the
agreements and due to many students
council to get their Ucenses.
not being present or us not being able
to have actual contact with them we
A busy, challenging and fulfilling year
hove still managed to let properties
at SU Homes, and all things considered
staying within the guidance given at
really not far of budget showing just
the time by the government.
how amazing my team actually ore.
Holly Sphngett passed her ARLA exam
so Gemma, Myself and Holly as the only
—

—

Ruth Purvis
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SECTION 3:

OUR
FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
Excluding adjustments to the Defined
Pension Scheme liability provision, the
SU’s unrestricted funds closed the 2021
financial year with a net deficit
£1 37.7k, £99.ok ahead of the budgeted
deficit of -237.4k.

essential services. From Term 3 student
numbers increased slightly with face to
face teaching reinstated for specific
courses, however, the majority of
students and staff continued to study
and work remotely.

2020-21 has been an exceptionally
challenging year. Constant changes to
the Government’s social distancing
guidelines during the first term required
a very agile approach to planning both
in terms of events and activities as well
the allocation of resources and
budgets. The Operational Budget we
are reporting against was prepared in
line with the guidelines in place at that
time.

Grant funding received in the year
included: University Core Grant of
£1.875m; an additional £203k paid in
July from the University’s contingent
fund and CJRS (furlough) Grant funding
of £715k. During the year permanent
staff who were furloughed or flexibly
furloughed were paid 100% of their
contractual pay. Those student staff
who remained eligible during the
second lockdown were furloughed on
80% of their average earnings.

-

Term 1 started with a 10pm curfew in
the SU Bar and continuing capacity
and social distancing restrictions.
However, despite these restrictions,
some services were able to open and
the SU delivered a wide range of virtual
and face to face activities and events,
including a very successful and safe
Freshers Fairl However, this was short
lived and in November the county of
Essex moved into Tier 2 restrictions
followed by the reinstatement of a full
lockdown from Term 2. This meant the
closure of all but essential services and
a return to virtual activities and support.
Restrictions began to ease from Term 3
which enabled some services to re
open and the resumption of face to
face activities and support services in
addition to continuing to provide virtual
alternatives for the majority of members
who continued to study remotely.
Student numbers dropped significantly
during lockdown with the vast majority
of SU and University staff working from
home. However, with circa 1,200
students remaining on campusduring
Term 2 the SU continued to provide

In addition, the SU made 2 successful
“prevention of access” insurance
claims in respect of both lockdowns
totalling £lOOk.
During the year the SU was assessed by
HMRC for £99k in respect of VAT treated
as exempt under the catering
concession. The SU is party to a
collective complaint made by the
National Union of Students on behalf of
more than 29 Students’ Unions. The
assessment has yet to be enforced,
whilst the complaint, now at stage 2
continues to be considered. Full
provision, including interest, has been
made in the accounts for this potential
liability.
The Services Division closed the year
reporting a net deficit of -272.2k, after
allocation of their share of the CJRS
Grant and including the above
provision, resulting in a shortfall against
budget of £686.3k. This operating
budget assumed the full resumption of
all services from Term 2.
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The Enabling Division delivered net
savings of £210.Ok against the base

RESULTS

budget. primarily as a result of the
deferral of replacing leavers, in line with
the SU ‘s recruitment freeze, pension apt
outs and the adoptian of an essential
expenditure only policy in every
department.

The consolidated unrestricted reserves,
after taxation, amount to £15,541 (2020:
£125,560). Restated to exclude the
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
liability provision, this year’s results
place the SU with unrestricted reserves
of £554,552 (2020: £692,28 7).

The Student Activities & Support Division
ended their year with savings of £1 57.9k
against base budget with face to face
activities
and
events
restricted,
particularly in Term 2, and the deferred
replacement of leavers contributing to
this underspend.

Restricted funds that are not available
for general purposes totalled £387,388
(2020: £302,000). These are restricted
funds for Sports, Societies, Hardship
Loans and specific activities.

SUBSIDIARY PERORMANCE

The SU participates in three principal
pension schemes for employees; they
are the Universities Superannuation
Scheme (USS), the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the
Superannuation Arrangement far the
University of London (SAUL). All three
schemes are defined benefit schemes
which are externally funded and are
contracted out of the State Second
Pension (S2P). Each fund is valued
every 3 years by professional qualified
independent actuaries.

DESU Limited made a loss of -79.9k,
excluding the 2019/20 Gift Aid
payment of £45.Ok, paid in September
2020. Government restrictions meant
that our Sub Zero night club was unable
to trade for most of the year. Although
budgets assumed a Term 2 re-opening
the move to Tier 2 in November
followed
by
another
lockdown
removed any possibility of trading for
the remainder of the year. Staff were
either temporarily redeployed or
furloughed. Expenditure was limited to
fixed and contractual costs only and
staff
costs
recharged
net
of
attributable furlough grants. The
Trustees approved an interest free
intercompany working capital loan of
£95,000 repayable over 2 years to
ensure its subsidiary remains cash
solvent. Sub Zero has a full line up of
events scheduled from the start of Term
1 2021/22 for our members ta enjoy.
Essex Student Lets Ltd continued to
trade throughout the pandemic and
made a profit of £101 .2k excluding the
2019/20 Gift Aid payment of £61 .7k and
before a Management Charge of £46k.

PENSION LIABILITY

The USS and SAUL schemes are multiemployer schemes for which it is not
possible to identify the assets and
liabilities of the SU, due to their mutual
nature. Therefore, they are accounted
for as defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes.
The Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
liability arises because the SU has
entered
into
contractual
a
commitment to fund past deficits with
the USS Scheme. The Net Present Value
of the Union’s deficit contributions are
therefore reflected as a liability on the
balance sheet, This is based on the last
complete actuarial valuation of 3]st
March 2018. The 2020 valuation was
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signed and filed with The Pensions
Regulator with an effective date of 1
October 2021. The increased liability
arising as a result of the 2020 valuation
is detailed in note 23 Post Balance
Sheet Event.
The SU reviews all employer updates
issued by its pension providers, attends
valuation briefings and participates in
all employer consultations.
Budgets and Forecasts take occount of
expected increases in employer
pension contributions.

Net Current
position

Asset /

Liability

Step 4
What other risks or opportunities are on
the horizon
• Capital Investment needs
• Specific liabilities
The Trustee Board set Unrestrictea Free
Cash Reserves Targer of £535k to be
achieved by the end of the 2023/24
financial year. This target is made up as
follows:
• £lOOk
funding for capital
investment opportunities
• £185k continuity of charitable
activities! fluctuations in income
• £250k working capital
—

—

The University of Essex acts as
Guarantor to the USS Trustee for all of
the Unions financial obligations arising
out of its participation in the USS
pension scheme including all fnancial
obligations consequent of the Union
ceasing to participate in the USS
scheme.
The University of Essex also acts as
Guarantor in respect of all section 75
debt arising out of the Union’s
participation in the SAUL Pension
Scheme.

RESERVES POLICY
During the year the Trustees and
Directors reviewed the Reserves Policy
and set a new target based on a 3 year
recovery plan.
A Risk Identification approach was
applied based on the following steps:
Step 1
Identification the risks to our Income
streams
Step 2
Categorisaton of our expenditure into
fixed costs and flexible costs, core, and
overhead
Step 3
Other solvency considerations:
Cash flows

—

Unrestricted Free Cash Reserves are
calculated as follows:
Total Unrestricted Reserves
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets
Acid Capital Grants not yet amortised
Total Free Cash Unrestricted
Reserves
And excludes the Defined Benefit
Pension Scheme liability.
Less

The consolidated Reserves Target set
for 2020/21 of £331 .2k was based on
the
Trustee
Boards
maximum
acceptable consolidated deficit for
the year of -237.4k. As at 31st July 2021
Unrestricted Free Cash Reserves
amounted to £583.4k (2020: £500. 1k)
representing 176% (2020: 116%) of the
Reserves Policy target. The closing
position was stronger than anticipated
due to:
• An actual deficit in the year of
-137k, £99 .6k ahead of budget
• Contingent Grant funding of
£203k
received
from
the
University
• Capital Grant funding of £160k
was received in July to fund the
new
alcohol
café
free
operation, due to open for the
start of Term 12021/22.
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FUNDRAISING ACTIVITY

The SU is primarily funded by the
University of Essex by way of an annual
grant and by a number of commercial
student services provided to our
members.
The SU therefore does not engage in
large scale fund raising activities such
mass
as
mailings,
telephone
fundraising
or
door
to
door
campaigns. The SU does not employ a
professional fundraiser nor engage the
services of any third party to raise
funds.
Fund raising aclivity is limited to funds
raised by our Sports Clubs and
Societies via the University of Essex’s
Alumni “Click” crowdfunding platform.
To this end the SU has not considered it
necessary or appropriate to sign up to
any regulatory code of fundraising
practice.
The SU has not received any
complaints about any aspect of its
fundraisng.
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SECTION 4:

OUR PLANS
FOR
2021-22
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The Board has had a difficult year of
dealing with the consequences of the
global pandemic, as we come out from
behind that shadow we can look
forward to some exciting new
developments in 202 1/22.
1. FINANCIAL RECOVERY
The board has recognised the
impact that Covid 19 has had on
the financial position of the SU and
has tasked the Senior Leadership
team, tnrough the CEO, to achieve
the financial recovery plan agreed
in 2020.
The reserves position of the SU is
better than expected
2.

ON-LINE ENGAGEMENT

The year will see a significant
number of students accessing Ihe
SU services online. The senior
leadership team are tasked with
further
developing
ts
online
presence to meet the needs of its
16,000 members.
3. ACADEMIC REPRESENTATION
With the continuation of Blended
learning through the 2021/22 it is
important that the SU continues to
act as the main voice for students.
2021/22 will see the SU enhance its
position as the voice of students in
this online world to make sure ‘hat its
members
are
not
unduly
disadvantaged as a result of a mix
of on campus and online study
4. INCREASE IN

engagement whilst holding in
person face to face parliaments as
well.
5. SUSTAINABILITY
This year will see an increase in the
focus the SU places on its
sustainability work. Working with the
University we are committed to
minimising our scope 1 (direct
emissions) and scope 2 {indirect
emissions from the consumption of
purchased electricity, steam, heat
and cooling) and will be working up
a plan for our scope 3 (indirect
emissions occurring in our value
chain).
We are also launching our first ever
sustainabilily shop called ‘The Eco
Store’, which will sell carbon neutral,
plastic
free
and
eco-friendly
merchandise.
6. ALCOHOL FREE ENTERTAINMENT
SPACE
2021/22 sees the launch of our new
alcohol free entertainment space
called The GREENHOUSE café. The
space will offer a daytime and night
time space for students to meet up
and interact, play games, and listen
to music in a relaxing and chilled
environment.

ENGAGEMENT WITH

PARLIAMENT

ParliamenT continues to engage
with students on a number of topics
important to them.. This year the SU
sees Parliament move to a dual
aspect approach to its activity. We
will continue to develop our online
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STUDENTS*
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THAT’S ALL FOR NOW:
FIND OUT MORE ABOUT
WHAT WE’RE DOING
NOW AT:
WWW.ESSEX.SU
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PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
The Trustees at the time when this Trustees Report is approved have confirmed that:
•
•

so far as the Trustees are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Union’s
auditors are unaware, and
the Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as the Trustees in order
to be aware of any information needed by the Union’s auditors in connection with preparing
their report and to establish that the Unions auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board on the

Samira-Caterina Monteleone
President

¶.

A.

j I

/ ?

I

and signed on its behalf.

1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF UNIVERSITY OF
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of University of Essex Students’ Union (‘the charity) and its
Subsidiaries (the group’) for the year ended 31 July 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Charity Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group or parent charity’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of
its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustee’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charity’s or the group’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue,
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Charities (Accounts and
Reports) Regulation 2008 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

the information given in the financial statements is inconsistent in any material respect with the
trustees’ report; or

•

sufficient and proper accounting records have not been kept by the parent charity; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement, the trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group and the parent
charity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to Liquidate the charitable
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditor under section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance
with the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.re.orq.uk/auditoonsibilfties This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We identified and
assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements from irregularities, whether due to
fraud or error, and discussed these between our audit team. We then designed and performed audit
procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the charity and group
operates, focusing on those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The laws and regulations we considered in this context
were the Charities Act 2011 together with the Charities SORP (FRS 102). We assessed the required
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our audit procedures on the related financial statement
items,
In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the
financial statements but compliance with which might be fundamental to the charity’s and the group’s ability
to operate or to avoid a material penalty. We also considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist
within the charity and the group for fraud. The laws and regulations we considered in this context for the
Union were General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Health and safety legislation.
Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the Trustees and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any.
We identified the greatest risk of material impact on the financial statements from irregularities, including
fraud, to be within the timing of recognition of income and the override of controls by management. Our audit
procedures to respond to these risks included enquiries of management, the Audit & Risk Committee about
their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities, sample testing on the posting of journals,
reviewing accounting estimates for biases, reviewing regulatory correspondence with the Charity
Commission. and reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non
compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) is from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it. In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of irregularities, as
these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls.
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We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance
with all laws and regulations.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charity’s trustees, as a body, in accordance with Part 4 of the Charities
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charity’s trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the charity and the charity’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Ut

L±P

Crowe U.K. LLP
Statutory Auditor
Aquis House
49-51 Blagrave St
Reading

Date

1.3

Mn.t.-

a crj_

crowe U.K. LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the companies Ad 2006.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR
(Including income and expenditure account)

Income and endowments from:
Donations and Grants:
Donations, University Grant, etc.
Grant of serviced accommodation
CJRS furlough grant income
Other trading activities:
Advertising and media
Investment income
Charitable activities for students:
Bars, venues and entertainment
Shops and vending
Catering
Societies & clubs
Lettings
Other income

Note Unrestricted Restricted
Income
Income

-

-

2c)

-

2,078,053
427,700
715,077
11,593

-

394,963

Capital
Grants

160,000

-

-

-

-

-

Total
2021
£

Total
2020
£

2,633,016
427,700
715,077

2,232,699
427,700
606,519

11,593

27,638
146

243,932
555,040
53,599
20,930
319,891
101,412

1,523,169
2,236,177
701,815
156,006
349,702
29,414

5.082.190

8.290.985

8,174

334

1,193,108
238,731
334,056
301,606
948,520
393,889
1,128,247
442,837

931,955
230,677
286,068
688,005
1,892,565
953,586
2,436,499
377,864

4.989.168

7.797.553

93,022

493,432

-

243,932
555,040
53,599
479
319,891
101,412

-

-

-

-

-

Total income

_45O6 .776

Expenditure on:
Costs of raising funds:
Finance costs
Charitable activities for students:
Representation and campaigns
Advice centre
Student activities and volunteering
Clubs and societies
Bars, ventures and entertainments
Catering
Shops and vending
Lettings

1,193,108
231,304
138,051
174,963
948,520
393,889
1,138,247
442,837

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4—7

Net (expenditure) I income
Transfers between funds:
Capital grant amortisation
Net movement in funds
Fund balances brought forward
Fund balances carried forward

-

415.414

160,000

8,174

-

Total expenditure

20,451

4.659,093

(152,317)

14

42,297

-

7,427
196,005
126,643

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

330.075

85,339

-

-

160,000

(42,297)

(110,020)
125,561

85,339
301,998

117,703
172,702

93,022
600,261

493,432
106,829

15.541

387.337

290.405

693.283

600.261

All of the above results are derived from continuing activities.

The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
2021

2020

£

£

£

£

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

8

Current assets
Stocks in bars, shops & other outlets
Debtors & prepayrrients
Cash at bank & in hand

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts due within one year

261,566

364,914

261,566

364,914

11
12

129,648
133,916
1,586,896
1,850,460

207,079
224,676
1,205,407
1,637,162

13

(879,732)

(835,094)

Net current assets

970.728

802. 068

Net assets excluding pension liability

1,232,294

1,166,982

Defined Benefit pension scheme liability

(539,011)

(566,721)

693.283

600.261

Total net assets
Representing Charitable Funds:
Capital Grants Fund
University Grant for Refurbishment

14

290,405

172,702

Restricted Income Funds

15

387,337

301,998

Unrestricted Income Funds

16

15,541

125,561

Total Funds

17

Approved on behalf of the University of Essex Students’ Union on
Samira-Caterina Monteleone
Barw Van-Eupen

—

-

-

‘)C
‘r...)

I

‘). .1

a

I

600.261

by:

President

Trustee*

The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements
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CHARITY BALANCE SHEET
2021
£

2020
£

£

£

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

8
9

Debtors: Amounts falling due after one
year

10

Current assets
Stocks in bars, shops & other outlets
Debtors & prepayments
Cash at bank & in hand

11
12

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts due within one year

261,566
3

364.914

261,569

364.917

47,500

13

129,648
225,151
1,343,882

207,079
385,579
791,453

1,698,681

1,384,111

(750713)

(688,730)

Net current assets
Net assets excluding pension scheme
liability
Defined Benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

947,968

695,381

1,257,037

1.060,298

(539,011)

(566,721)

718.026

493.577

Representing Charitable Funds:
Capital Grants Fund
University Grant for Refurbishment

14

290,405

172,702

Restricted Income Funds

15

387,337

301.998

Unrestricted Income Funds

16

40,284

18,877

Total Funds

17

1iB.Z

The surplus in the year relating to the parent charity was £224,449 (2020: £567,565 surplus).
Approved on behalf of the University of Essex Students’ Union on
Samira-Caterina Monteleone
Barn Van-Eupen

—

-

.1.!.’...lJ........................ by:

President

Trustee

The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources
Interest receivable
Interest payable
Capital grant movement
Depreciation
Decrease! (increase) in stock
Decrease! (increase) in debtors
(Decrease)! increase in pension liability
lncreasef(decrease) in creditors

2021

2020

£

£

93,022
8,174
(160,000)
126,101
77,431
90,760
(27,710)
45,297

493,432
(146)
334
(4,000)
133,686
(722)
(5.856)
(481,006)
(261,899)

Net cash provided by! (used in) operating activities

253,075

(126,177)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receivable
Interest payable
Capital grants received
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

(8,174)
160,000
(22,753)

4,000
(183,639)

Net cash provided byl (used in) investing activities

129,073

(179,493)

-

146
-

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance leases repayments
Finance lease interest

(659)

(7,623)
(334)

Net cash (used in) financing activities

(659)

(7,957)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

381,489
j,205,407

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(313,627)
1,519,034
£ 1,205.407

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents;
2021
£
Cash at Bank

2020
£
1,205,407

Analysis of Net Funds

Cash
Finance leases

At the Start
of the year

Cashilows

At the end
of the year

1,205.407
(659)

381,489
659

1,586,896

1,204,748

382.148

1.586.896

-

The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES_TO THE_ACCOUNTS
Charity Information
The principal activities of The University of Essex Students’ Union (UESU) are campaigning
,
representation, provision of social activities and, the organisation of sporting and recreational activities
and
opportunities. UESU is an unincorporated association and a registered charity number 1140278 domiciled
in the UK. Its registered address is: Wivenhoe Park, Colchester, Essex, C04 3SQ.
2

Accounting Policies
(a)

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015)
Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102).
—

The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared to give a true and fair view and have
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required
to provide a true and fair view. This departure has involved following Accounting and Reporting by
Charities, preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS1 02) issued on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities; Statement of Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005, which
has since been withdrawn.
UESU meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. Assets and liabilities are
initially recognized at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant
accounting policy note(s).
Consolidated financial statements (group accounts”) have been prepared in respect of the charity
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Essex Student Lets Limited, UESU Limited and SU Homes
Limited. No separate SOFA has been presented for the parent as permitted by the Charities
SORP.
(b)

Going Concern
The charity has cash resources and is supported by the University of Essex. The trustees have
also considered how COVID-19 could affect the accounting policies that underlie these financial
statements, and have reviewed budgets, forecasts and cashflows and have made assessments
regarding possible uncertainties and the adequacy of disclosures. Following this review, the
Trustees consider that there are sufficient reserves at 31 July 2021 with additional support from
the University if necessary, to manage any foreseeable downturn in the UK and global economy
and that there is a reasonable expectation the Charity has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Trustees continue to adopt
the going concern’ basis in preparing the annual financial statements.

(c)

Incoming resources
All income and capital resources are recognised in the accounts when the Charity is legally entitled
to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable certainty.
Grants are accounted for under the performance model as permitted by the Charity SORP. CJRS
grant income is therefore recognised on a straight-line basis over the furlough period for each
relevant employee.
The University grant of free serviced accommodation on the campus is accounted for as income
and expenditure of the year at an estimated value to University of Essex Students’ Union by
reference to the alternatives available on the commercial market.
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(d)

Resources expended
Expenditure includes irrecoverable VAT. Charitable expenditure comprises the direct and indirect
costs of delivering public benefit. Governance costs are those incurred for compliance with
constitutional and statutory requirements, such as the annual audit, annual elections and training
for sabbatical officers. The value of free serviced campus accommodation is apportioned on
estimated floor space occupied. Other central overhead costs are apportioned to charitable and
other projects/activities on a usage basis, pro rata to the total costs of each project or activity
undertaken.

(e)

Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets are not capitalised below
£2,500 cost per item. Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write the
cost of assets off over their estimated useful lives:
Building Developments
Motor Vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

-

-

-

5% 20% per annum straight line
20% 25% per annum straight line
20% 33% per annum straight line
-

-

-

(f)

Investments
University of Essex Students’ Union’s fixed asset investments are valued at cost, as these assets
are not readily saleable and a reliable market value is not readily ascertainable.

(g)

Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment

(h)

Creditors
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price.

(i)

Pension costs
Retirement benefits to employees of the Union are provided through three pension schemes.
These are the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the University Superannuation
Scheme (USS) and for some deferred members, the University of London (SAUL). All three
schemes are defined benefit schemes.
LGPS&SAUL
Under these schemes, pensions are based on final pensionable salary, and contributions are
based on final salary. The schemes are multi-employer schemes where it is not possible, in the
normal course of events, to identify on a consistent and reasonable basis, the share of underlying
assets and liabilities belonging to individual participating employees. Therefore, as required by
FRS1 02, the Union accounts for these schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes. The
amount charged to the Statement of Financial Activities represents contributions payable to the
schemes in respect of the accounting period.

USS
The latest available full actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2018 (“the valuation
date”), which was carried out using the projected unit method. The 2018 valuation was the fifth
valuation for the USS under the scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act
2004, which requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective, which is to have sufficient
and appropriate assets to cover their technical provisions.
The Scheme operates as a pooled arrangement, with contributions paid at a centrally agreed rate.
As a consequence, no share of the underlying assets and liabilities can be directly attributed to the
Union. However the Union has entered into an arrangement to clear the scheme deficit by 31 March
2028. The Net Present Value of the Union’s contributions as part of this scheme are reflected as a
liability on the balance sheet, which will reduce as they are paid.
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U)

Taxation
No provision is made in these accounts for corporation tax as the union is exempt from such taxes
as a result of its charitable status.

(k)

Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as expenditure on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.

(I)

Assets held under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed
assets. Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives. Assets acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful lives. Finance
leases are those where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the
company. Obligations under such agreements are included in creditors net of the finance charge
allocated to future periods. The finance element of the rental payment is charged to the Profit and
loss account so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding
in each period.
Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of the cost and its net realisable value.

(m)

(n)

(o)

Fund accounting
University of Essex Students’ Union administers and accounts for a number of charitable funds, as
follows:
(I)

Unrestricted Funds representing unspent income which may be used for any
activity/purpose at the Trustees’ own discretion;

(ii)

Designated Funds set aside by the Trustees to be spent on some specific purpose at its
own discretion;

(U)

Restricted funds raised and administered by University of Essex Students’ Union for
specific purposes as determined by students, such as Club and Societies Accounts, as
well as revenue received for purposes specified by the donor and also (if not material
enough to require a separate column in the SoFA) any small capital grants received from
the University.

Financial instruments
The charity holds only financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments. Basic financial instruments include debtors, cash and creditors.
Debtors and creditors are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. The pension liability is valued at fair value with the movement processed through
the Statement of Financial Activities.

3.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements and estimates. The key
sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are that of the USS pension scheme deficit. A discount rate of 0,89% has been used in line
with industry standards.
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4.

Total resources expended
Cost of
Sales
£

Finance costs
Charitable activities
Representation and
Campaigns

Staff
Costs
£
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

84.193
3L708
384,087

-

Total costs
Prior Year 2020
-

Finance costs
Charitable activities
Representation and
Campaigns
-Advice centre
Student activities and
Volunteering
Clubs and societies
Bars, venues and
Entertainments
Catering
-Shops and vending
Lettings
Restricted Funds

Other Costs
£

-

505.988

Total
£

8174

8,174

88,954

13193,1 08

-

-

Advice centre
Student activities and
Vounteering
Clubs and societies
Bars) venues and
Entertainments
Catering
Shops and vending
Lettings
Restricted Funds

Rent &
Premises
£

965,388

138,766

188.118

26,902

16,284

83139

36,405

18,507

231,304
138,051

168,730
569,065

91,400

6,233
203,862

948,520

72,255
143,499
81,146
215,219

393,889
1,128,247
442,837
330,075

246,986
521,262
316,188
114,856

3.173.732

-

36,940

79,399
45,503
-

455.315

174,963

4.989.168

Cost of Sales

Staff
Costs

Rent &
Premises

£

Other Costs

Total

£

£

£

£

-

-

334

334

-

-

-

-

-

723158
181.948

93,384
22,789

110,112
19,044

926,654
223,781

131,408
320,195

38,672
21,205

66,642
25,109

236,722
366,509

826,975
511,991
652,979
270,010
87,109

118,848
66,137
90,444
33,876

334,784
108,660
158,376
73,425
313,289

1,878,088
95Z579
Z435,177
377,311
400,398

3.705.773

485,355

1.209,775

7.797.553

-

-

-

-

-

Total costs

597,481
265,791
1,533,378
-

2,396,650

-

Included within other costs above is the group annual audit fee of £16,820 (2020: £16,330). Total cost of
other services provided by the auditors in the year amounted to £6,940 (2020: £5,699). Affiliation costs for
the year amounted to £10,655 (2020: £11,294).
Total governance costs included within other costs are £38,269 (2020: £36,539).
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5.

Central Overhead Costs included in Note 4

Charitable activities
Representation and campaigns

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Advice centre
Student activities and volunteering
Clubs and societies
Bars, ventures and entertainments
Catering
Shops and vending
Lettings
Totals

Staff
£

-

-

-

-

Totals

Total
£

138766

70542

61,436

526206

26,902

1 3,676

102,014

83,139

36,405

18,507

138,051

262,232
108,063
225,774
134.354

88,813
36,599
76,466
45,503

86,447
35,624
74,428
44,292

437,492
180,286
376,668
224,149

1.191.896

449.454

343.514

1.984.866

Staff

Rent &
Premises

Other

£

Total

£

£

£

136.996
33.083
57,599
31,583
277,218
148,673
195,217
81,678

91,980
22,213
38,672
21,205
114,977
61,662
80,966
33,876

65,096
15,720
27,369
15,007
97,676
52,383
68,783
28,779

294,072
71,016
123,640
67,795
489,871
262,718
344,966
144,333

962,047

465,551

370,813

1,798411

-

-

Other
£

316898

Prior Year 2020

Charitable activities
Representation and campaigns
-Advice centre
Student activities and volunteering
Clubs and societies
-Bars, ventures and entertainments
Catering
-Shops and vending
Lettings

Rent &
Premises
£

--

Central overhead costs are apportioned across charitable activities based on both direct commercial
administration staff costs and core services staff cost percentages.
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6.

Staff Costs
2021

2020

£
Wages and salaries
Social security
Pension costs
Other staff costs

£

2,689,323
225799
256,261
2347

3,617395
259836
(196,308)
24,850

_34113232

£3705773

The number of employees whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 was:
2021
No.
£60,000 -£70,000
£70,000 -£80,000
£90,000 -£100,000

2020
No,
3
1

3
1

The average staffing was as follows:
Full time
Students—term time only
Students out of term
—

100
25
9

114
189
22

The staffing by FTE was as follows:
Full time
Students

—

term time only

90
10

100
69

Key management personnel comprise the Chief Executive, Directors and Sabbatical Trustees as noted on
page 2. During the year, Key management personnel received aggregate remuneration (including
employers NI and employers pension) of £480,930 (2020: £478,228). Redundancy costs totalled £16,907
(2020: £Nll).
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7.

Trustees’ Remuneration and Expenses
The Union’s sabbatical officers received the following amounts for the period 1 August 2020 to 31
July
2021, as authorised in the Union’s governing document:
Olivia Matthews
Molly Purcell
Alexandru Ilie
Fouad Adrian Tejan-Jalloh
Mark Kiley
Ria Buachie
Vinnosh Jaya Kumar
Callum Broadbent
Hannah Akhalu
Isabella Ciuta
Nashwa Alsakka
Dorothy Akuamoa

£21,105
£19,346
£19,346
£19,346
£22,223
£19,346
£19,346
£1,758
£1 758
£1,758
£1,758
£1,634

Each of this year’s sabbatical officers received £1,758 (2020: £1,759) for 1 months remuneration in the
year as authorised in the Union’s governing document, for the representation, campaigning and support
work they undertake as distinct from their trustee responsibilities. This work includes voicing student
opinion with the institution and local community, defending and extending the rights of students through
petitions, discussion with MPs and also organising and supporting student volunteers and service provision
for them. The total employer costs for sabbatical officers in the year amounted to £150,485 (2020:
£148,193).
Trustees were reimbursed a total of £812 (2020: £1,159) for the year in respect of personal travel and
subsistence expenses.
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8.

Tangible Fixed Assets

—

Group and Charity

Cost
At 1 August 2020
Additions

Building
Refurbishment

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment

Total
2020

£

£

£

891934
-

1445719
22,753

At 31 July 2021

891.934

576,538

L468.472

Depreciation
All August 2020
Charge for the year

748,337
46,396

332,468
79.705

1080,805
126.101

At 31 July 2021

794.733

412.113

1.206,906

-

Net Book Values
at 31 July 2021

97.201

164.365

261 .566

at 31 July 2020

14,k9j

221,317

364.914

2021
£

2020
£

-

-

9.

553785
22753

Investments

—

Charity only

At Cost
Investment in UESU Limited
Investment in Essex Student Lets Limited
Investment in SU Homes Limited

1
1
I

1
1

3

_____3
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9.

Investments (continued)
UESU Ltd
Reg No 07321517

Trading Subsidiaries
Turnover
Cost of sales

2021
£

Essex Student Lets Ltd
Reg No 07413547

2020
£

11,270

2021
£

2020
£

856,538
(303,932)

319,891

11,270

552.606

319,891

349,702

Administrative expenses

(91.2151

(507,645)

(264.6871

(287,978)

Net (loss)/ profit

t79.945

44,961

55.203

61,724

Gross profit

-

Retained earnings

£

349,702

-

44.961

-

£

61,724

UESU Limited had net liabilities totalling £79,944 (2020: Net assets totalling £44,962) at the year-end.
UESU Limited undertakes certain trading activities on behalf of the Union.
Essex Student Lets Limited had net assets totalling £55,204 (2020: £61, 725) at the year end. The company
provides letting services to students.
The registered office for both subsidiaries is University of Essex Students’ Union, Wivenhoe Park,
Colchester, Essex, C04 35Q.

10.

Debtors: Amounts due
after one year

2021
Group

Charity

Group

Charity

£

£

£

£

Intercompany debtors

47,500

-

47500

-

11.

Stocks

Stocks

12.

-

-

—

2021

-

2020
Charity

Group

Charity

£

£

£

£

=I2M

=i2L&4

207.079

2020

2021
Group
£

Other debtors
Prepayments & accrued income
Intercompany debtors

-

Group

Debtors

Trade debtors

2020

Charity
£

8,205
3,543
122,168

8,205
3,543
91,463

-

121,940

==j=j

==g4j1

Group

Charity

£

£

27,933
1,591
195.152
-

27,933
1,591
167,326
188,729

224&L6
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13.

Creditors: Amounts due
within one year

HP and finance leases
Trade creditors
Social security & other taxes
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Intercompany creditors

14.

2021

2Q20

Group

Charity

Group

£

Charity

£

£

£

529,729
180,186
145,879
23,938

529,691
185,841
11,482
23,699

659
473,894
170,620
158,521
31,400

659
473,874
177,969
5,120
31,108

=Z1z

750.713

835.094

688730

2021

2020

£

£

Capital Grants Fund

At 1 August 2020
Received in year
Amortisation
Balance at 31 July 2021

172,702
160,000
(42,297)
£

290.405

223,573
4,000
(54,871)
£

-

172,702

Capital grants are provided by the University to fund the capital requirements of the Union. These are
being released to unrestricted funds over the useful economic lives of the assets to match the depreciation
charge of the assets capitalised along with any losses on disposal of these assets.
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Restricted Funds —2021

Funds:
Sports & Society Equipment
Reserve
Sports & Society Restricted
Funds
Essex Sport Board
Sundry Other Funding
Hardship Fund
Volunteering Project Fund
Community Activities &
Events Fund

Restricted Funds -2020

Funds:
Sports & Society Equipment
Reserve
Sports & Society Restricted
Funds
Essex Sport Board
Sundr’j Other Funding
Hardship Fund
Volunteering Project Fund
Community Activities &
Events Fund

Brought
Forward
£

Income
£

29,779

Expenditure
£

Transfers
£

Carried
Forward
£

(802)

-

20,451

(8,671)

-

151,200
1,963
61,800

(117,170)
(386)
(7,427)
(56,296)

180.000

(139,323)

-

40,677

301.998

=4j4j4

1330.075)

-

387.337

Brought
Forward

Income

Expenditure

£

£

Transfers

Carried
Forward

£

£

£

224,190
-

20,858
27,171
-

-

29,779
186,201
-

19,604
3a.703
53
-

269.340

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

154,758

(116,769)

198,382
1,382
48534

(19& 382)
(128)
(6,532)
(48,587)

30.000

(30.000)

423.Q

(400.398)

-

-

-

-

-

-

28,977
235,970
34030
22:435
19,744
5,504

29,779
224,190
-

20,858
27,171
-

301.998

Sports & Society Equipment Reserve: this fund is restricted to the purchase/repair of equipment
belonging to clubs & societies. It is made up of a general fund and funds raised for a specific club or
society.
Sports & Society Restricted funds: this fund constitutes C’ub & Society balances carried forward to next
year (made up of funds raised by the clubs/societies, Alumni Click funding and/or membership fees not
spent in the year).
Essex Sports Board: Formerly ‘Sports for Free’ this fund has been set up to provide partly funded sports
activities to students, including participation in the BUCS League and Just Play.
Sundry Other Funding: Small donations received from various sources, such as from local councils for
specific volunteering projects or from sports bodies for a specific club activity.
Hardship Fund: A fund to provide short term small loans to students suffering from financial difficulties.
Volunteering Project Fund: HEFCE funding, via the University, for the SU’s V-Team (Volunteering).
Community Activities & Events Funds: One off University Grant to fund virtual and on-campus events
and activities for students during the pandemic, the carried forward balance will be used to enhance the
‘welcome activities for students at the start of the 2021-22 academic year.
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16.

Unrestricted Funds
At 1 August
2020
£
Charity
Subsidiary funds

At 31 July

Income
£

Expenditure
£

18,877

4,175,615

(4,196,505)

106,684

331,161

(462,588)
4.659.093

Prioryear

Charity
Subsidiary funds

17.

Transfers
£

2021
£

42,297

40,284
(24,743)

42.297

AtlAugust
2019

Income

Expenditure

£

Transfers

£

£

£

15.541

At31 July

(566,901)

6,647,690

(6,116,783)

180,817

1,206.239

(1,280,372)

7,833S29

JZW555

2020
£

54,871

18,877
106,684

54871

125â61

Net Assets of the Funds of the Charity and Group
As at 31 July 2021

Net Current

Long term

Fixed Assets

Assets

liabilities

Total

£

£

£

£

Capital Grant Fund
Restricted Income Funds
Unrestricted funds

290,405

Charity

-

290,405

387,337

-

387,337

(23,836)

608,131

(539,011)

40,284

261569

995,468

(539,011)

718,026

-

Subsidiary Reserves

(3)

Group

As at 31 July 2020

(24,740)
970.728

(24,743)
(539.011

693.283

Fixed Assets

Net Current
Assets

Long term
liabilities

Total

£

£

£

£

Capital Grant Fund
Restricted Income Funds
Unrestricted funds

172,702

-

192,215

301,998
393.383

(566.721)

172,702
301,998
18.877

Charity

364,917

695,381

(566,721)

493,577

(3)

106,687

Subsidiary Reserves
Group

-

802.068

-

106.684

=JQJZ1

_Qoo261
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18.

Leasing Commitments
At 31 July 2021 University of Essex Students’ Union had future minimum lease payments under
noncancellable operating leases as detailed below:2021

2020

£

£

Plant and machinery
Within one year
Within two to five years

1,446

19,484
19,826

1.446

39,310

Operating lease payments of £17,810 have been recognised as an expense in the year (2020: £58,010).
19.

Capital Commitments
At 31 July 2021 there were capital commitments of £38,588 (2020: £Ni/).

20.

Control Relationship
Ultimate control of University of Essex Students’ Union rests with its membership, represented by UESU
Parliament.

21.

Related Party Transactions
The following transactions with the University of Essex have taken place in the year:
-

-

-

-

A recurrent core grant from the University of Essex of £2,078,053 (2020: £1,950,400), capital grants of
£160,000 (2020: £NiI), other restricted grants of £393,000 (2020: £276,326) and a grant in lieu of rent
£427,700 (2020: £427,000).
The Union has received other income of £Nil (2020: £86,948) from the University.
The University has invoiced the Union for rent of £427,700 (2020: £427,000).
The Union has made other payments to the University of £Nil (2020: £59,901).

£432,674 was owing to the University at the year end (2020: £429,168).
The following transactions took place with the subsidiary companies in the year:
UESU Limited: The Union recharged expenses of £90,901 (2020: £617,220) and a management charge
of £Nil (2020: £140,000). UESU Limited made a gift aid donation to the Union of £44,961 (2020: £143,976).
At year end, £96,859 was owing to the Union (2020: £102,804).
Essex Student Lets Limited: The Union recharged expenses of £211,954 (2020: £225,326) and a
management charge of £46,000 (2020: £55,000) Essex Student Lets Limited made a gift aid donation to
the union of £61 724 (2020: £36,842). At year end, £72,580 was owing to the Union (2020: £85,918).
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22.

Pension Costs
The Students’ Union has three principal pension schemes for employees. These are the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS), the University Superannuation Scheme (USS) and the Superannuation
Arrangements of the University of London (SAUL).

Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS)
The latest available full actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2018 (the valuation date”),
which was carried out using the projected unit method. The 2018 valuation was the fifth valuation for
the
USS under the scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act 2004, which requires
schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective, which is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover
their technical provisions.
The Scheme operates as a pooled arrangement, with contributions paid at a centrally agreed rate. As
a
consequence, no share of the underlying assets and liabilities can be directly attributed to the Union
However the Union has entered into an arrangement to clear the scheme deficit by 31 March 2028.
In
accordance with FRS1O2, the net present value of the future contributions required until 2028 to clear
funding deficit is £539,011 (2020: £566,721 to clear the fund by March 2028).
In calculating the net present value in the Financial Statements, a discount rate of 0.89% (2020: 0.74%)
representing the typical yield of high quality corporate bonds has been applied. The following annual
increases in salary have been used (taking into account expected staff changes and salary inflation).
The total contributions paid into the Scheme by the Union in respect of eligible employees for the year
ended 31 July 2021 amounted to £255,226 (2020: £280,247).

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
The Essex County Council LGPS is a defined benefit scheme. The LGPS became a closed scheme in
August 1997. As disclosed in note 2i) this is a multiemployer scheme which has been accounted for as a
defined contribution scheme. The employer contribution rate for 2020-21 was 23.9% (2020: 22.4-23.9%).
Employer’s pension contributions charged during the year ended 31 July 2021 amounted to £4,927 (2020:
£7803).

Superannuation Arrangement of the University of London (SAUL)
The University of Essex Students’ Union participates in the SAUL, which is a centralized defined benefit
scheme within the UK and was contracted out of the Second State Pension (prior to April 2016).
SAUL is an independently- managed pension scheme for the non-academic staff of over 50 Colleges and
institutions with links to higher education.
Pension benefits accrued within SAUL currently build up on a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE)
basis.
The University of Essex Students Union is not expected to be liable to SAUL for any other current
participating employer’s obligations under the Rule of SAUL, but in the event of an insolvency of any
participating employer within SAUL, an amount of any pension shortfall (which cannot otherwise be
recovered) in respect of that employer, may be spread across the remaining participating employers and
reflected in the next actuarial valuation.
SAUL’s statutory funding objective is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to meet the costs incurred
by the trustee in paying SAUL’s benefits as the fall due (the Technical Provision’). The Trustee adopts
assumptions which, taken as a whole, are intended to be sufficiently prudent for pensions and benefits
already in payment to continue to be paid and for the commitments which arise from Members’ accrued
pension rights to be met.
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Pension Costs (continued)
The Technical Provisions assumptions include margins to allow for the possibility of events turning
out
worse than expected. However, the funding method and assumptions do not completely remove
the risk
that the Technical Provisions could be insufficient to provide benefits in the future.
A formal actuarial valuation of SAUL is carried out every three years by a professional qualified
and
independent actuary. The last actuarial valuation was carried out with an effective date of 31 March
2020.
Informal reviews of SAUL’s position, reflecting changes in market conditions, cashflow information
and new
accrual of benefits, are carried out between formal valuations.
The funding principles were agreed by the trustee and employers in June 2021 and will be reviewed
again
at SAUL’s next formal valuation in 2023.
At the 31 March 2020 valuation SAUL was 94% funded on its Technical Provisions basis. However,
market
movements following the valuation date were positive and the trustee and the employers agreed
to allow
for post-valuation experience up to 30 April2021. As SAUL was in surplus on its Technical Provisions
basis
at that date, no deficit contributions were required. However, the trustee and the employers have
agreed
that the ongoing Employer’s contributions will increase from a rate of 16% of CARE Salaries to 19%
of
CARE Salaries from 1 April 2022 and to 21% of CARE Salaries from 1 January 2023.
Total employer contributions charged for active members during the year ended 31 July 2021 amounted
to £25,996 (2020: £6,845).

23.

Post Balance Sheet Event
Since the year end, following the completion of the 2020 actuarial valuation, a new dual rate schedule of
contributions has been agreed with an effective date of 1 October 2021. Recalculating the USS provision
on the basis of these contributions would result in a increased obligation to fund the deficit of £1,599,104,
an increase of £1,060,093.
A further change to deficit recovery contributions will become applicable under the 2020 valuation if the
Joint Negotiating Committee recommended deed on benefit changes has not been executed by 28
February 2022. In this scenario, higher deficit recovery contributions will commence from 1 October 2022
at 3% and then increase every 6 months until they reach 20% at 1 October 2025. They remain at this level
until 31 July 2032. Negotiations continue and an increase to this level is considered remote
If the Schedule of Contributions remains unchangec, the University’s Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 July 2022 will reflect these changes to the provision, subject to any other changes in financial
and operational assumptions.”
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24.

Comparative Statement of Financial Activities

Income and endowments from:
Donations and Grants:
Donations, University Grant! etc.
Grant of serviced accommodation
CJRS furlough grant income
Other trading activities:
Advertising and media
Investment income
Charitable activities for students:
Bars, venues and entertainment
Shops and vending
Catering
Societies & clubs
Lettings
Other income
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total income

Unrestricted
Income

Restricted
Income

1,950,400
427,700
606,519
27.638
146
1,523,169
2,236,177
701,815
1,249
349; 702
29,414
7,853,929

278,299

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

154,757

-

-

433,056

456,774

32,658

-

-

-

Net (expenditure) / income
Transfers between funds:
Capital grant amortisation
Clubs and societies allocation

-

-

400.398

-

-

-

7.3&5

-

-

-

Total expenditure

-

-

-

5,301
6,896
49,346
321,496
14,477
1,007
1,322
553

-

334

4,000

-

926,654
223,781
236.722
366,509
1,878,088
952,579
2,435,177
377.311

-

Total
2020

£

Expenditure on:
Costs of raising funds:
Finance costs
Charitable activities for students:
Representation and campaigns
Advice centre
Student activities and volunteering
Clubs and societies
Bars, ventures and entertainments
Catering
Shops and vending
Lettings
-

Capital
Grants

4,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,000

2,232,699
427,700
606,519

27,638
146
1,523,169
2,236,177
701,815
156.006
349.702
29,414
8.290,985

334
931,955
230,676
286.067
688.005
l,89Z565
953,586
Z436.499
377,864
7.79753

493.432

(54,871)

54,871

Net movement in funds
Fund balances brought forward

511,645

32,658
269,340

(50,871)
223,573

493,432
I 06,2

Fund balances carried forward

(125.5f ii

301.998

172.702

600,261
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